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Date:  September 21, 2022 
 
To:  Stephanie Cecco, Brittany Rogers 
 
From:  Eric P. Johnson, PE 
 
Re:  300 E. 5th Avenue – Zoning Determination 
 
 
History of the Site:  
 
300 E. 5th Ave is the Veterans of Foreign Wars Post (Conshohocken Veterans Association) located 
at the corner of E. 5th Ave and Wells St. The property is developed with the VFW building on the 
corner and a parking lot to the rear of the building. The property is an existing non-conforming 
use in the BR-1 zoning district.  
 
At some point in the past, several evergreen bushes were removed along the southeastern side of 
the VFW parking lot. The bushes provided the required visual buffer between the parking lot and 
the abutting residential property. Therefore, the removal constitutes a zoning violation. On 
October 27, 2021, a zoning violation letter was sent to the VFW outlining the requirement that the 
buffer be established in accordance with the Zoning Code Standards. The zoning violation also 
required the VFW to come into compliance with the refuse enclosure standards of the Zoning 
Code. Within the timeframe allotted by the zoning violation letter, the VFW contacted the 
Borough with confirmation that permits would be submitted for the reestablishment of the buffer 
and refuse facility; and that construction would take place in the spring.  
 
As of May 31, 2022, no permit application was received by the Borough and a second violation 
letter was issued.   Within the timeframe allotted by the second zoning violation letter, a zoning 
permit application was filed with the Borough on June 8, 2022. The permit application indicates 
the installation of a refuse collection facility, retaining wall, and 6-foot-high opaque fence. During 
the course of the permit review, it was identified that additional information was required to 
supplement the application and confirm compliance of the plan with the zoning code. The VFW 
submitted revised plans as requested during the permit review process. To date, no permit has 
been issued to the VFW for the refuse collection facility, retaining wall, or fencing.  
 
Per the plans submitted with the VFW Zoning Permit application, the proposed retaining wall 
would run parallel to the southeastern property line, offset 1.5 feet from the property line, with a 
height not to exceed 48-inches.      
 
306 E. 5th Ave is a single-family detach residential property which shares a common property line 
with the VFW.  
 

http://www.conshohockenpa.gov/


September 21, 2022  300 E. 5th Avenue Zoning Determination 

Current Request:  
 
The petitioner, Ellen Smith, who resides at 306 E. 5th Ave has filed an appeal of decision of the 
zoning officer related to the permitted placement of a retaining wall. Specifically, the applicant is 
challenging that a retaining wall can be installed within the parking lot buffer strip as required 
per Section 27-2007.F of the Borough Zoning Ordinance.    
 
Zoning Determination:   
 
Per Zoning Code Section 27-2007.F, a buffer strip 10 feet in width shall be provided between 
parking lots and each property line abutting a residential property. The buffer shall be designed 
according to the following standards: where a parking area adjoins a residential property, a 
dense, continuous, evergreen screen at least six feet in height shall be provided. In lieu of a 
planted buffer, a six feet high decorative opaque fence may be substituted. The use of native plant 
materials and naturalistic design is encouraged. Section 27-2007.F regulates the width of a 
parking lot buffer strip and requires the installation of vegetative screening or an opaque fence 
to a height of 6-feet to provide a visual screen between the parking lot and a residential property 
but does not place limits on the construction of a retaining wall within the buffer.  
 
Per Zoning Code Section 27-809, retaining walls shall not exceed six feet unless authorized by the 
Zoning Hearing Board as a special exception; all walls and fences shall be outside of the legal 
right-of-way; and all walls and fences running along a rear or side lot line shall be setback at least 
two feet from the cart way of an alley, where applicable. Section 27-809 makes specific references 
to the placement of walls and fences running along a side property line and only requires a 
setback from the property line if an alley cartway is present; and is therefore not applicable to the 
proposed VFW retaining wall along the southeastern property line.  
 
As referenced by the applicant, Zoning Code Section 27-1005.E requires a minimum side yard 
setback of 5 feet for permitted uses in the BR-1 zoning district; and that the definition of yard 
states it is the area of a lot which must remain free of buildings or other structures. The definition 
of yard also defines a yard as measured at right angles from the lot line to the nearest building 
wall; and a retaining wall does not meet the definition of a building. Additionally, the Zoning 
Code establishes specific setback standards for accessory structures, fences, and retaining walls. 
As outlined above, the specific setback standards for retaining walls is 0 feet.  
 
The Zoning Hearing Board should also take note that according to the Montgomery County 
Property Records, the owner of record for 306 E. 5th Ave is Adam Smith; however the subject 
application has been filed by Ellen Smith as the property owner of 306 E. 5th Ave. 
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ZONING NOTICE 

SEPTEMBER 26th, 2022, ZONING HEARING BOARD MEETING  
 

ZONING HEARING Z-2022-18 
 

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Conshohocken Zoning Hearing Board will 
conduct a public hearing on September 26th, 2022, at 7:00 p.m. prevailing time. The 
meeting will be held at Borough Hall, located at 400 Fayette Street, Conshohocken, PA 
19428.  
 
At this time, the Conshohocken Zoning Hearing Board will hear testimony and accept 
evidence on the following petition:  
 
PETITIONER:   Ellen Smith 
     306 E. 5th Ave., Conshohocken, PA 19428  
       
PREMISES INVOLVED:  300 E. 5th Ave., Conshohocken, PA 19428   
     Borough Residential 1 Zoning District 
 
OWNER OF RECORD:  Conshohocken Veterans Association 
     300 E. 5th Ave., Conshohocken, PA 19428 
           
The petitioner is appealing the decision of the Zoning Officer that a retaining wall can be 
installed within the parking lot buffer strip as required per Section 27-2007.F of the 
Borough Zoning Ordinance.  
 
Interested parties are invited to participate in the hearing. Anyone requiring special 
accommodations to attend should contact the Conshohocken Borough Administration 
Office at 610-828-1092 or zoning@conshohockenpa.gov as soon as possible for 
arrangements. 
 
If you have questions regarding the above prior to the meeting, please contact the 
Borough at zoning@conshohockenpa.gov. 
 
 
Thank you,  
Zoning Hearing Board 

http://www.conshohockenpa.gov/
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ZONING NOTICE 

MAY 16th, 2022, ZONING HEARING BOARD MEETING  
 

ZONING HEARING Z-2022-09 
 
NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Conshohocken Zoning Hearing Board will 
conduct a public hearing on May 16th, 2022, at 7:00 p.m. prevailing time. The meeting 
will be held at Borough Hall, located at 400 Fayette Street, Conshohocken, PA 19428.  
 
At this time, the Conshohocken Zoning Hearing Board will hear testimony and accept 
evidence on the following petition:  
 
PETITIONER:   Millennium Waterfront Associates II, LP  
       
PREMISES INVOLVED:  Parcel 05-00-11856-13-6 

(Between 20 Ash St. and 225 Washington St.) 
     Conshohocken, PA 19428   
     Specially Planned District 2 
 
OWNER OF RECORD:  Millennium Waterfront Associates II, LP 
     201 King of Prussia Rd. – Suite 501 
     Radnor, PA 19087 
           
The petitioner is seeking variances from and/or an appeal of a zoning decision from 
Section 27-1502 and Section 27-1511 of the Conshohocken Zoning Ordinance related to 
the proposal to development the subject property with a residential use.  
 
Interested parties are invited to participate in the hearing. Anyone requiring special 
accommodations to attend should contact the Conshohocken Borough Administration 
Office at 610-828-1092 or zoning@conshohockenpa.gov as soon as possible for 
arrangements. 
 
If you have questions regarding the above prior to the meeting, please contact the 
Borough at zoning@conshohockenpa.gov. 
 
 
Thank you,  
Zoning Hearing Board 
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